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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The oldest portion of the present Custom House was built in 1827 as a
small one-story adobe structure of two rooms. This section forms a part
of the first story of the present north two-story wing. In 1841-42, under
contract with the Mexican Government, Thomas O. Larkin, an American
merchant and master-builder, enlarged the original Custom House by adding
the present second story to the north wing, a portion of the present
central one-story section, and a porch on the east or ocean side of the
one-story wing. Between 1843 and 1846, Larkin did further work, adding
the final section to the present one-story portion erecting the present
two-story wing at the southern end of the one-story center. Two-story
verandas were added on the ocean side and ends of each wing. In its final
form, in 1846, the Custom House was a long, one-story, tile-roofed building,
built of adobe and rock, with two-story hip roofed wings in the Monterey
Colonial style located at the northern and southern ends. The building,
including the verandas, is 135 feet long and 34 feet wide.

The ground plan is composed of four rooms in a straight line with inter-
connecting doorways, and each with doors to the exterior. The large main
room is approximately 19 feet by 60 feet and contains a brick fireplace.
The ground floor level of the north (original) wing is two steps higher
than the main room. Interior wood stairways lead to the second floors of
the north and south wings. Windows on the ground floor have interior solid
paneled shutter and iron bhar grills on the exterior. The restored
building is maintained in excellent condition and is open to visitors as a
museum.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Erected in 1827, and enlarged and remodelled in 1841-46, the 0ld Custom House
at Monterey, California, is an excellent example of the application of the
Monterey Colonial Style to public building architecture. The building is
also the oldest public one still standing on the West Coast.

HISTORY

On winning its independence from Spain in 1821, Mexico repealed the Spanish
laws forbidding foreign trade and the important California hide and tallow
trade soon developed with New England. The Mexican Government erected the
present Custom House at Monterey, then the capital of Mexican California, in
1827, and until 1845, this was the only custom house north of Mexico. Every
trading yessel plying the coast of California was compelled to enter its
cargo at the Monterey port. A single vessel might pay from $5,000 to
$25,000 in duty on its cargo. The revenue collected at Monterey from the
hide and tallow trade provided almost the only monetary support for the
civil and military operations of the Mexican Government in California. It
was here at the Custom House, on July 7, 1846, that Commodore John D. Sloat,
commander of the U.S. Pacific squadron, first raised the American flag and
officially proclaimed California to be a part of the United States.

The structure was utilized as a U.S. Custom House from 1848 to 1868. Then
occupied as a residence until the early 1890's, the structure then became
uninhabitable due to deterioration. In 1900, the Native Sons of the Golden
West leased the building from the Federal Government and began restoration.
In 1901, the lease was transferred to the State of California. In 1903,
state funds were made available for a further modest restoration, and in
1917, additional funds to complete the restoration. From 1903 to 1929, the
building was used as lodge rooms by the Native Sons, and in the latter year,
legislation was passed to establish the building as a State Historical
Monument. On January 1, 1930, it was taken over by the Division of Beaches
and Parks and opened to the public as a museum, which role it still plays
today.
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The 01d Custom House, in Monterey, at 115 Alvarado Street, is a building
owned by the State of California and open to the public as a museum. It
lies within the boundary of the Monterey 0ld Town District (a national
historic landmark). Beneath the Custom House Plaza run several lanes of a
modern highway. Immediately east of the house is a railway spur.
Immediately south of the 135 X 34 foot building is an open space also
controlled by the State of California, and called the Custom House Plaza.

The boundary of the 0ld Custom House consists of all the land currently

owned by the State of California at that site, east of Oliver Street, and
south of a line drawn directly east into Monterey Bay from the south side

of that part of Oliver Street which turns to run east-west. This will include

approximately two acres of land around the house, and is known as Custom
House Plaza.



